1- MMGP

FILED

FILED

FILED

WASHINGTON STATE
SUPREME COURT

465728-11

NO.4672-8 [court of appeals case number]

SUPUREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON STATE OF WASHINGTON

Respondent,

Vs.

ADAM C. BOUCK

Petitioner.

COURT OF APPEALS
DIVISION II

2016 JAN 13 PH 1: 2:
STATE OF WASHINGTON
BY
DEPORT

PETITION FOR REVIEW

[ADAM C. BOUCK], PETITIONER

1255 9th AVE

LONGVIEW, WA 98632

A.IDENTITY OF PETITIONER

I ADAM C. BOUCK ask this court to accept Review of the decision in part B of this motion.

B.DECISION

Petitioner seeks review of the entire decision
Of the Court of Appeals affirming petitioners
Conviction and sentence entered in the superior
Court of Washington for [Cowlitz] County. A copy
Of the Court of Appeals decision is attached to this
Motion.

C.ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

I believe that this case did not have enough factual basic In order to support this conviction. And I believe the SURPREME COURT should review all the errors in this case.

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

It is true that the state had DNA evidence that linked The defendant to the hat. However that evidence Also demonstrated the presence of another persons DNA. The only other evidence also demonstrated The only other evidence on identity was presented Through a surveillance video and testimony of Two witnesses saw. Thus, the courts error in Denying the defendant his constitutional rights To due process and effective assistance of Counsel was not harmless beyond a reasonable Doubt. As a result of this I believe this conviction Should be overturned.

E.ARUGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

THE TRIAL COURT DENIED THE DEFENDANT THE RIGHT TO PRESENT A DEFENE WHEN IT GRANTED A STATES MOTION TO PRECLUDE HIM ARGUING THAT THE STATE FAILURE TO HAVE THE VICTIM OF THE ROBBERY IDENTIFY THE DEFENDANT IN THE COURTROOM AS THE PREPETRATOR CONSTITITED REASONBLE DOUBT REQUIRING ACQUITTAL.

F.CONCLSION

For the reasons set out in this motion, this Court should accept review of this case and Reverse petitioners conviction.

DATED this. 11th day of January 2016

[Name of, petitioner]
Adam C. Bouck

Adam C. Bouck

December 15, 2015

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON DIVISION II

STATE OF WASHINGTON,		No. 46572-8-II
	Respondent,	UNPUBLISHED OPINION
v.		
ADAM C. BOUCK,		
	Appellant.	

BJORGEN, A.C.J. — A jury convicted Adam Bouck of second degree robbery. Bouck appeals, claiming that the trial court infringed his rights to counsel and due process. He contends that these rights were violated when the trial court did not allow his attorney to argue that the State's failure to ask a specific witness to identify Bouck in court as the robber created a reasonable doubt as to whether Bouck committed the robbery. However, because the trial court allowed Bouck to argue that no witness identified him in court, we reject his claim and affirm his conviction.

FACTS

In late November 2012, a male attempted to shoplift a number of items from a store in Longview. A store clerk followed the man into the parking lot and an altercation ensued. The man managed to escape from the scene with some of the items he took. Extraction of

deoxyribonucleic acid (DNA) from a hat recovered at the scene led police to Bouck, and the State eventually charged him with second degree robbery.¹

The day before trial, the prosecutor showed the store clerk two photos of Bouck. When Bouck's defense counsel learned of this, he moved in limine to prohibit the State from asking the store clerk to make an in-court identification of Bouck as the robber, arguing that showing the photos to the store clerk was impermissibly suggestive. When the parties addressed the motion in limine before trial, the prosecutor stated that she was "not conceding that there was anything wrong in the tactic" in showing the store clerk the photos, but that she had no plans to ask him "to identify the [d]efendant in court." 1 Verbatim Report of Proceedings (VRP) at 63.

At trial, the State presented testimony from the store clerk and another witness regarding the struggle in the parking lot, both of whom described the robber's physical appearance. A police detective testified that Bouck matched the description, and the police officer who responded to the robbery testified about collecting the dropped hat from the scene. A crime lab technician testified that Bouck was likely the major contributor to the DNA sample extracted from the hat. The lab technician also testified that the likelihood someone other than Bouck was the major contributor was "one in 27 quintillion." which was a "pretty low probability." 2 VRP at 217.

Before closing arguments, the prosecutor moved to "prohibit [d]efense [c]ounsel from arguing the lack of evidence from the in-court identification of [the store clerk] since it was specifically asked in their motion in limine and the State agreed not to elicit such evidence." 2 VRP at 252. Bouck objected. The trial court stated, "I will not prohibit the [d]efense from

¹ RCW 9A.56.190, .210(1).

² 1 in 27,000,000,000,000,000,000,000,000. See VRP (May 21, 2014) at 217.

arguing that there's not an identification of the [d]efendant from someone at the scene." 2 VRP at 254. The State then clarified that it was not asking the trial court to forbid the argument that no one had identified Bouck as the robber, but only that the trial court forbid defense counsel from "specifically saying, 'The State never asked [the clerk] if he could identify the [d]efendant here in court." 2 VRP at 254. The trial court agreed to prevent this specific variant of argument, stating that "I think that's appropriate, that he was never asked; there's a reason he wasn't asked." 2 VRP at 255.

Defense counsel built his closing argument around a theme of "lack of evidence," and how that lack of evidence created reasonable doubt. 2 VRP at 287, 297. As part of his closing argument, defense counsel made the argument permitted by the trial court, stating, "There wasn't anything close to an in-court identification of Mr. Bouck." 2 VRP at 294.

The jury found Bouck guilty of second degree robbery, and he filed this appeal.

ANALYSIS

Bouck contends that the trial court infringed his rights to counsel and due process when his attorney was prevented from arguing that the State's failure to ask a specific witness, the store clerk, to identify Bouck as the robber in court created reasonable doubt as to whether he committed the robbery. The State contends that the trial court allowed Bouck to challenge the State's proof of his identity as the robber during closing argument and that no constitutional violation occurred. We agree with the State.

The trial court possesses "broad discretionary powers over the scope of counsel's closing arguments." *State v. Frost*, 160 Wn.2d 765, 771-72, 161 P.3d 361 (2007). However, the trial court's restrictions on the scope of defense counsel's argument may infringe two of the

defendant's constitutional rights. *Id.* at 772. The first is the right to counsel.³ *Id.* at 772-73. The second is the right to due process,⁴ specifically the right to be free from criminal conviction unless the State proves all of the elements of the alleged offense beyond a reasonable doubt. *Id.* at 773. A trial court infringes these rights where it "limits [closing] argument as to any fact necessary to constitute [the] charged offense," lessening the State's burden of proof.⁵ *Id.* at 772-73. Such limitation occurs where the trial court prevents the defendant from arguing that the State failed to present sufficient evidence of an element of the criminal act. *Id.* at 777-79; *Conde v. Henry*, 198 F.3d 734, 739 (9th Cir. 1999).

We review de novo whether a trial court's restrictions on closing argument violate the defendant's constitutional rights. *See State v. MacDonald*, 183 Wn.2d 1, 8, 346 P.3d 748, *as corrected*, (Apr. 13, 2015). Any constitutional violation would constitute an abuse of the trial court's discretionary powers over the scope of closing argument. *See State v. Strizheus*, 163 Wn. App. 820, 829, 262 P.3d 100 (2011).

Here, Bouck wanted to argue that none of the State's witnesses identified him as the robber in court, creating reasonable doubt about an element of the State's case, namely that he

³ The Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that "[i]n all criminal prosecutions, the accused shall enjoy the right... to have the assistance of counsel for his defense." Article I, section 22 of the Washington State Constitution provides that "[i]n criminal prosecutions the accused shall have the right to appear and defend in person, or by counsel." Bouck does not argue that these provisions offer different protections in the context of his case.

⁴ The Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution provides that "[n]o state shall . . . deprive any person of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law." Article I, section 3 of the Washington State Constitution provides that "[n]o person shall be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law." Bouck does not contend that these two provisions offer different protections in the context of his case.

⁵ The trial court may also infringe these rights in other ways, such as when it completely forbids closing argument. *E.g.*, *Herring v. New York*, 422 U.S. 853, 95 S. Ct. 2550, 45 L. Ed. 2d 593 (1975).

was the robber. The trial court allowed the argument, and Bouck made that argument to the jury. What the trial court forbad was a specific phrasing of the argument Bouck wanted to make—that the State's failure to ask for an in-court identification from the store clerk created reasonable doubt. Because the trial court allowed Bouck to challenge the State's proof of the robbery offense elements, its restrictions on the scope of closing argument did not infringe Bouck's rights to counsel or due process. *See Frost*, 160 Wn.2d at 772-73. Accordingly, we hold that the trial court's restriction on closing argument did not infringe Bouck's constitutional rights.

Given the lack of constitutional violation, any claim of error is necessarily a claim that the trial court abused its discretion with regard to closing argument. *See Frost*, 160 Wn.2d at 771. However, Bouck's motion in limine gave the trial court a basis for exercising its discretion in the way that it did and its decision was not unreasonable. The trial court did not abuse its discretion.

CONCLUSION

The trial court's limitation on Bouck's closing argument did not infringe his constitutional rights. He was still able to make the argument that no witness had identified him in court, just not in the specific way he desired. Furthermore, the trial court did not abuse its discretion, since Bouck's motion in limine gave the trial court a reasonable basis for limiting his closing argument in the manner it did. We affirm.

No. 46572-8-II

A majority of the panel having determined that this opinion will not be printed in the Washington Appellate Reports, but will be filed for public record in accordance with RCW 2.06.040, it is so ordered.

Byrah, A.C.J.

We concur:

Maxa, J.