RECEIVED 
SUPREME COURT 

STATE OFWASHINGTON 
Feb 09,2016, 10:16 am 

ElY RONALD R. CARPENTER 
CLERK 

RECEI:VED BY E-MAIL 
NO. 92717~1 

COA NO. 46572~8~11 
Cowlitz Co. Cause NO. 14"1"00193·0 

SUPREME COURT OF STATE OF 
WASHINGTON 

STATE OF WASHINGTON, 

Respondent, 

v. 

ADAM CHARLES BOUCK, 

Appellant/Petitioner. 

RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEVV 

HALL OF JUSTICE 
312 SW FIRST 
KELSO, W A 98626 
(360) 577-3080 

RYAN JURVAlKAINEN 
Prosecuting Attorney 
AILA W ALLACE/WSBA 46898 
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
Representing Respondent

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

The State of Washington, by and through the Cowlitz County 

Prosecuting Attorney's Offi.ce, respectfully requests this Court deny review 

of the December 15,2015, unpublished opinion of the Court of Appeals in 

State v. Bouck, COA No. 46572-S~II. This decision upheld the petitioner's 

conviction for one count of second degree robbery. 

II. ANSWER TO ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

The Court of Appeals properly held that the trial court did not 

infringe Bouck's constitutional rights or abuse its discretion in limiting 

closing argument. 

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

On November 20, 2012, Scott Taggart was working as a cashier at 

a Safeway in Longview, Washington, when he observed a man moving 

quickly from the produce section to the front door, carrying a basket with 

items in it. RP 69. He approached the man to ask if he could help him or 

check out his items, but the man continued outside the store at a quick pace. 

RP 70. Mr. Taggart then grabbed the basket the robber was holding and 

there was a "tug of war" with the basket. RP 71. The robber then jumped 

into a van and drove away. RP 7 5. 
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The robber was wearing a black hat during the altercation which fell 

off in the scuffle. RP 7 6. Another witness to the altercation called police, 

who came to the Safeway and took possession of the hat as part of their 

investigation. RP 84. 

The hat was sent to the crime lab to be tested for DNA. RP 137. 

David Stritzke of the WSP crime lab swabbed the sweat band of the hat for 

DNA. RP 215. The DNA profile obtained from the hat was consistent with 

having come from two different people. RP 216. The major component 

matched the DNA profile of Bouck. RP 217. The probability that the DNA 

came from someone other than Bouck was estimated as one in 27 

quintillion. RP 217. Mr. Stritzke explained that it is not unusual to find a 

mixture of DNA on clothing and that, in order to find a person to have been 

the major contributor of the DNA that person's DNA would have to have 

been at least 75 percent of the total. RP 217-18. In other words, Bouck's 

DNA constituted 75 percent of the DNA that was found on the hat, 

indicating that he had had more contact with the hat than any other person. 

RP 207,214. 

Bouck was anested and ultimately charged with Robbery in the 

Second Degree. CP 13-14. One the day prior to trial, the prosecuting 

attorney showed Mr. Taggart two photos of Bouck, and he said that the man 

photographed looked like the robber. CP 29. The defense filed a motion in 
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limine to prohibit the in~court identification of Bouck by Mr. Taggati, 

arguing that the out"of~coUii identification was impennissibly suggestive. 

CP 28-30. In response to this motion, the State opted to not ask Mr. Taggmi 

to identify Bouck in court. RP 63. 

Prior to closing arguments, the State moved the couri to prohibit 

defense counsel from arguing a lack of evidence from the absence of any 

in~couti identification of Bouck by Mr. Taggart. RP 252. Specif1cally, the 

State moved to preclude the defense from saying "The State never asked 

Mr. Taggmt if he could identify the defendant here in comt.'' RP 254. The 

comt granted this motion, mentioning that the question was never asked and 

there was a reason the question was not asked - namely, the defense's 

motion in limine. RP 255. The defense was, however, permitted to discuss 

that tl.1ere was no in-comt identification of Bouck by the eye-witness. 

Bouck was convicted of Robbery in the Second Degree. He appealed and 

the court of appeals upheld the conviction. 

IV. ARGUMENT 

The Court of Appeals properly held that the trial court's 
limitation on Bouck's closing argument did not infringe his · 
constitutional rights, and that the trial court did not abuse its 
discretion by limiting the closing argument. 

RAP 13 .4(b) states that a petition for review will only be accepted 

by the Supreme Comi only if one of four conditions are met: (1) If the 
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decision of the Comi of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the 

Supreme Comi; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict 

with a decision of another division of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a 

significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of 

Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition 

involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined 

by the Supreme Co mi. Neither in the petition for review nor in the decision 

from the Court of Appeals are there any issues that would fall under one of 

the four conditions as outlined by RAP 13 .4(b ). The Division II Co uti of 

Appeals holding in this case is not in conflict with any decisions either the 

Washington Supreme Court or another division of the Cou1t Appeals. The 

holding also does not raise a significant question of law or involve an issue 

of substantial public interest. 

1. There was no violation of Boucl' 's constitutional rights. 

A presiding judge has great latitude in controlling the duration and 

scope of closing arguments. Herring v. NeHJ York, 422 U.S. 853, 862, 95 S. 

Ct. 2550 (1975). Closing arguments must be "restricted to the facts in 

evidence and the applicable law." State v. Perez-Cervante~\ 141 Wn.2d 

468, 474, 6 P.3d 1160 (2000). The trial comijudge therefore has discretion 

to limit closing arguments. However, a limitation on closing arguments can 

violate a person's constitutional rights in certain circumstances. A trial 
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court could infringe a person's constitutional rights by limiting closing 

"argument as to any fact necessary to constitute the charged offense." State 

v. Frost, 160 Wn.2d 765, 771, 16 P.3d 361 (2007). Such a violation was 

not present here. 

The Washington Court of Appeals has overturned. cases based on 

limitations on closing argument when those limitations are much more 

stringent than the one in this case. For example in Devries, the trial court 

prevented the defense from presenting any closing argument at all. State v. 

Devries, 109 Wn.App. 322, 323, 34 P.3d 927 (2003). On appeal, the comi 

held that the complete denial of dosing arguments is unconstitutional. I d. 

In this case, on the other hand, the defense was allowed to give closing 

argument, and was pennitted to argue that there was a lack of evidence 

st(~mming f]:om the lack of an inwcourt identification by either of the eyew 

witnesses to the crime. RP 294. Devries is therefore distinguishable. 

Second, in Frost, the trial court precluded the defense fi:om arguing 

both duress and that the State failed to meet its burden as to accomplice 

liability. 160 Wn.2d at 770. The trial court's decision was based on an 

eiToneous interpretation of existing case law. ld. at 774. The Washington 

Supreme Court therefore found that precluding the defense's closing was 

an abuse of discretion because it was based on an eiToneous inteq)retation 

of the law. Id. at 779. Conversely, in this case, the trial court's ruling was 
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not based on an incorrect interpretation of the law, or any other untenable 

reason. The trial court's decision was based on the defense's own motion 

in limine and ensured fairness to both parties. Therefore, there was no abuse 

of discretion in this case. 

2. .There was no abuse of discretion. 

An appellate court reviews a trial court's decision to limit the scope 

of closing arguments for abuse of discretion. Frost, 160 Wn.2d at 771; 

Perez-Cervantes, 141 Wn.2d at 474. An abuse of discretion will only be 

found if "no reasonable person would take the view adopted by the trial 

court." Frost, 160 Wn.2d at 771. There was no abuse of discretion in this 

case, as the trial court properly limited closing arguments to the facts in 

evidence and the applicable law. 

First, the defense in this case filed a motion in limine to prohibit the 

in-court identification of the defendant by Scott Taggart, the victim of the 

robbery. CP 28. This motion \vas made due to the defense's belief that the 

prior, out-of-court identification, was impern1issibly suggestive. Id. In 

response to that motion, but without conceding that the out-of-court 

identification was suggestive, the State opted to avoid asking Mr. Taggert 

to identify the defendant in court. RP 63. Therefore, the defense's motion 

was granted, and the State avoided asking Mr. Taggeti to identify the 

defendant in court. RP 67-90 (no identification of the defendant). 
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Prior to closing arguments, the State moved the court to prohibit 

defense counsel from arguing a lack of evidence from the absence of any 

in~court identification of Bouck by Mr. Taggart. RP 252. Specifically, the 

State moved to preclude the defense from saying "The State never asked 

Mr. Taggart if he could identify the defendant here in court." RP 254. The 

court granted this motion, mentioning that the question was never asked and 

there was a reason the question was not asked - namely, the defense's 

motion in limine. RP 255. The defense was, however, permitted to discuss 

that there was no in~comt identification of Bouck by the eye~witness. 

Therefore, the defense was allowed to argue the lack of evidence by 

discussing the fact that none of the eye-witnesses identified the defendant 

in comt. This is exactly what the defense did argue, and it was proper. RP 

294. What the defense was prevented from. doing was arguing a fact that 

was not in evidence basically that, because the witness did not identify the 

defendant in court, there was reasonable doubt as to the robber's identity. 

The trial court's ruling was proper, especially given the defense's motion in 

limine. A reasonable person could take the view adopted by the trial court, 

so there is no abuse of discretion. 
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There is no significant question of law or public interest, and the 

petition should be denied. 

V. CONCLUSION 

For the reasons stated above, Petitioner's petition for discretionary 

review should be denied.